
AGENDA

MONROE 
NORTH 
TIFA 

Board Members: 

Jim Baldwin  •  Shaun Biel  •  Mayor Rosalynn Bliss   •  Diedre Deering •  Kayem Dunn  •  Jim Talen  •  Rick 
Winn 

DOWNTOWN GRAND RAPIDS INC. 

Wednesday, February 14, 2024 
10:00 a.m. Meeting   
29 Pearl Street NW

 

1. Call to order

2. Approve Meeting Minutes from June 14, 2023 (10:00)
Motion – Biel   |  (enclosure)

3. Accept Financials from January 31, 2024 (10:01)
Motion – Chapman   |  (enclosure)

4. Accept FY2023 Audit (10:05)
Motion – Chapman   |  (enclosure)

5. FY2025 Budget Overview (10:15)
Info – Kelly   |

6. DGRI President & CEO Report (10:25)
Info Item – Kelly

7. Public Comment (10:30)

8. Board Member Discussion (10:35)

9. Adjournment



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Meeting of the City of Grand Rapids Tax Increment Financing Authority 

June 14, 2023 
 

1. Call to Order – This meeting was called to order at 9:00am by Chair Shaun Biel 

Attendance  

Present:  Shaun Biel, Kayem Dunn, Diedre Deering, Jim Talen, Rick Winn, Mayor 
Rosalynn Bliss, and Jim Baldwin. 

Absent:  

Others Present: Tim Kelly (Executive Director), Mandy McDaniel (Recording 
Secretary), Jessica Wood (Legal Counsel), Bill Kirk, Mark Miller (DGRI Staff). 

 
2. Approved Meeting Minutes from April 14, 2023 

Motion: Baldwin, supported by Mayor Bliss, moved approval of the minutes from April 14, 2023, Board 
Meeting as presented. Motion Carried unanimously. 
 

3. Approved May 31, 2023, Financials 
Motion: Talen, supported by Dunn, moved to accept Statement C: Schedule of May 31, 2023, 
Expenditures as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

4. FY2024 Budget Adoption 
Kelly has reviewed the recommendation for the FY24 budget from the April 2023 MNTIFA Board 
Meeting, which was approved by the City Commission without any changes. The final adoption of the 
FY24 budget is now being requested by the Monroe North TIFA Board. 
 
Motion: Member Talen, supported by Member Dunn, moved to adopt the FY2024 Budget to fund 
projects and priorities in the Monroe North Tax Increment Finance Authority for the period from July 1, 
2023 – June 30, 2024. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



5. DASH Funding Support   
Kelly presented a proposal to continue supporting the DASH services in Monroe North. The proposal 
suggests entering a three-year extension of the MOU, which would enable the DASH service to 
continue Downtown until June 30, 2026. The proposal involves the DDA and MNTIFA contributing 
$300,000 ($25,000 per month) and $100,004 ($8,333 per month), respectively. The route was 
rerouted in May and is now a consolidated route.  
 
Motion: Member Winn, supported by Mayor Bliss, to approve the extension of the DASH MOU with 
Mobile GR for an additional three years and for an amount not to exceed $300,000 annually in FY24 – 26 
for the continued operation of DASH services. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. DGRI President and CEO Report 
Kelly shared the following DDA updates:  

• On July 11th, the City Commission will hold a public hearing to discuss increasing building 
heights to 20 stories. 

• The construction should start at Colebrook roundabout after the 4th of July and go through 
November.  

• DGRI and DNR grant agreement has been executed.  
• Activation at Futsal Courts and Canal Park will have kayaking rentals available.  

 
Talen inquired about the height issue that was mentioned. An understanding is currently, you can add 
additional height if you provide affordable housing. Given what we hear about downtown with the 
unhoused individuals. What can we do to incentivize that? Kelly responded we have seen that the 
zoning code is not the best place to address some of these issues. We recognize there are other areas 
to help. DDA approved funding to help support a new program called Community Rebuilders. 
Incentives were not working the way we hoped.  
 

7. Public Comment 
None.  
 

8. Board member discussion 
Monroe North's annual summer picnic is on August 16th at 6th Street Park this year.  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:16 am.  
 
Minutes taken by:  
Mandy McDaniel 
Downtown Grand Rapids, Inc  





ASSETS
  Pooled Cash and Investments 3,470,061$            
  General Fixed Assets 1,486,800              
  Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (1,486,800)            

TOTAL ASSETS 3,470,061$            

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
  Accounts Payable 17$                        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17                          

Fund Balance / Equity:
  Investments in General Fixed Assets -                        
  Reserve for Compensated Absences 815                        
  Reserve for Encumbrances 2,096                     
  Reserve for Authorized Projects 3,467,133              

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,470,044              

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY 3,470,061$            

Prepared 2/5/2024

MONROE NORTH

STATEMENT A

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet

January 31, 2024



REVENUES Budget Actual
Property Tax Increment 445,225$     492,407$       

Property Tax Increment - Prior Year Appeals (5,000)          -                 

State of Michigan - Personal Property Losses 139,957       152,476         1

Investments Earnings 66,420         227,864         
TOTAL REVENUES 646,602$     872,747$       

EXPENSES
Committed and Ongoing

Contractual Services - Annual Audit 5,763$         6,380$           
Contractual Services - Legal 5,000           328                

General Fund Departments Services 28,056         16,366           
Insurance - General Liability 1,105           552                

Staff Support / Personnel 125,000       58,253           
Supplies 200              89                  

Share of DGRI Administration 10,000         4,153             
Sub-Total Committed and Ongoing 175,124$     86,121           

GR Forward Projects:
Goal #1:  Restore the River as the Draw and Create a Connected
  and Equitable River Corridor

Grand River Greenway and Corridor Planning 175,000$     25,000$         
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #1 175,000$     25,000$         

Goal #2:  Create a True Downtown Neighborhood Which is
  Home to a Diverse Population

District Enhancement Grants 50,000$       -$               
Infrastructure Improvements - Miscellaneous 10,000         -                 

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #2 60,000$       -$               

Goal #3:  Implement a 21st Century Mobility Strategy
Accessibility and Streetscape Improvement 150,000$     7,755$           

Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements 15,000         -                 
Transit Improvements in Monroe North District 150,000       58,331           

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #3 315,000$     66,086$         

Goal #5:  Reinvest in Public Space, Culture, and Inclusive Programming

Urban Recreation Plan 150,000$      -$               
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #5 150,000$     -$               

TOTAL EXPENSES 875,124$     177,207$       

EXCESS / (DEFICIT) (228,522)$    695,540$       
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,774,504      

ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,470,044$    

Note 1: State of Michigan reimbursement for the tax increment revenue losses related to
State-mandated industrial and commercial personal property exemptions.  
 

  

STATEMENT B

FY2024

MONROE NORTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY

FY2023 Statement of Revenues and Expenses
July 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024



Date
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

12/13/2023 Rowe Professional Services Company, Inc. Accessibility and Streetscape Improvement Rapid Flash Beacons at Var Locs 2023-1 2,131.37        
1/29/2024 Rowe Professional Services Company, Inc. Accessibility and Streetscape Improvement Rapid Flash Beacons at Var Locs 2023-1 1,797.29        

3,928.66        

12/31/2023 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,338.00        
1/31/2024 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,338.00        

4,676.00        

12/31/2023 City Treasurer - Risk Mgmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 92.08            
92.08            

12/6/2023 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Space Lease Dec 23 321.61           
1/3/2024 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Space Lease Jan 2024 321.61           

12/14/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Conferences 147.23           
1/7/2024 Lisa M Cooper Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 12/23 143.82           

12/11/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration MNTIFA Worksighted IT software 12/23 120.95           
1/16/2024 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT software 01/24 120.95           

12/11/2023 Lisa M Cooper Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 12/23 43.50            
12/11/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT monthly subscription 12/23 34.92            
1/16/2024 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT monthly subscription 01/24 34.92            
1/7/2024 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 11/23 34.90            

12/6/2023 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Space Lease Dec 2023 Mezz 31.52            
1/3/2024 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Space Lease Jan 2024 Mezz 31.52            
1/4/2024 City Treasurer - MobileGR Share of DGRI Administration Parking Validations invoices - July 2023 28.85            

12/3/2023 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 11/23 23.32            
12/28/2023 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 11/23 23.32            
1/29/2024 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 01/24 23.32            
1/18/2024 City Treasurer - MobileGR Share of DGRI Administration Parking Validations invoices - June 2023 21.55            
12/3/2023 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial services Nov 23 17.25            
1/2/2024 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial/Custodial Services- Dec 23 17.25            

1/31/2024 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial services Jan 24 17.25            
1/23/2024 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric 01/24 15.76            
1/7/2024 Fusion Financial Services, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Fusion Accounting services 11/23 13.08            

1/23/2024 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 01/24 12.90            
12/15/2023 City Treasurer - MobileGR Share of DGRI Administration Parking Validations invoices - Nov 2023 12.70            
12/17/2023 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 12/23 12.66            
12/17/2023 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric 12/23 11.92            

1/7/2024 Fusion Financial Services, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Fusion Accounting services 12/23 11.75            
12/14/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration DGRI Admin: Supplies (TIFA) 10.28            
12/3/2023 Staples Contract and Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 11/23 TIFA 9.10              
1/28/2024 YMCA of Greater Grand Rapids Share of DGRI Administration YMCA memberships first quarter 01/24 9.00              

12/14/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Food/Bev (MNTIFA) 8.31              
1/7/2024 Littlefoot Coffee Roasters Share of DGRI Administration Office Supply coffee 12/23 7.58              

12/20/2023 Marion Bonneaux Share of DGRI Administration M.Bonneaux - IDA conference reimbursement 10/23 7.40              
1/7/2024 Staples Contract and Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 12/23 TIFA 6.70              
1/7/2024 AccuSourceHR, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Criminal Background Check services 12/23 6.44              

1/12/2024 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Service (MNTIFA) 5.95              
1/12/2024 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Food/Bev (MNTIFA) 5.73              
1/11/2024 City Treasurer - MobileGR Share of DGRI Administration Parking Validations invoices - Dec 2023 5.70              

12/17/2023 JobMatch LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR software 12/23 5.45              
1/25/2024 JobMatch LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR software 01/24 5.45              
1/7/2024 Engineered Protection Sys Inc Share of DGRI Administration Office Security System 11/01/23-1/31/24 4.92              

1/12/2024 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration DGRI Admin: Supplies (TIFA) 4.05              
1/16/2024 Field & Fire Cafe LLC Share of DGRI Administration Staff breakfast 01/24 3.50              

12/20/2023 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 02/23-06/23 2.05              
1/11/2024 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 02/23-06/23 2.05              

12/17/2023 ACO Inc Share of DGRI Administration Ace Hardware Office Supplies 12/23 1.60              
1/12/2024 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration DGRI Admin: Fees (MNTIFA) 0.62              
1/12/2024 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Supplies 0.54              

12/14/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Subscriptions (MNTIFA) (1.94)             
1,760.81        

 

continued on the next page

STATEMENT C

MONROE NORTH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Expenditures

December 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024



Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority
Schedule of Expenditures
December 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024 Page 2

Date Activity #
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

Continued from previous page

1/31/2024 Downtown Development Authority Staff Support / Personnel DDA Payroll allocation - 7/1/2023-2/1/2024 50,000.00      
12/11/2023 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance Premium December 2023 -March 2024 TIFA2,703.15        
1/31/2024 Downtown Development Authority Staff Support / Personnel DDA Payroll allocation - 7/1/2023-2/1/2024 365.00           
1/7/2024 American United Life-Group Div Staff Support / Personnel OneAmerica Life Insurance 12/23 224.98           

1/20/2024 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 01/20/2024 205.77           
12/9/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 12/09/2023 205.60           

12/23/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 12/23/2023 205.60           
1/6/2024 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 01/06/2024 205.50           

12/4/2023 American United Life-Group Div Staff Support / Personnel OneAmerica Life Insurance 11/23 149.23           
1/28/2024 Encompass EAP LLC Staff Support / Personnel Annual EAP Billing 2024 147.00           
1/15/2024 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Mich Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premiums 11.01.23 - 06.30.24 53.15            

12/13/2023 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Mich Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premiums 11.01.23 - 06.30.24 51.97            
54,516.95      

12/28/2023 City Treasurer - Mobile GR Transit Improvements Nov 2023 MNTIFA Share DASH North Service 8,333.00        
12/28/2023 City Treasurer - Mobile GR Transit Improvements Dec 2023 MNTIFA Share DASH North Service 8,333.00        
1/29/2024 City Treasurer - Mobile GR Transit Improvements Jan 2024 MNTIFA Share DASH North Service 8,333.00        

24,999.00      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 89,973.50$    

STATEMENT C - continued











































Produced for the month of January 2024

Downtown Vitals Report
Downtown Development Authority

1



Summary of Downtown Vital Signs   |   Vitals Collected: January 2024

NEW BUSINESSES

+2
in January

+2
year-to-date

STOREFRONT VACANCY RATES

+3%
vs. Dec 2023

+3%
vs. 2-yr avg.

OFFICE SPACE VACANCY RATES

8.3%
in Q4 2023 vs. 9.5% in Q3 2023

HOUSING OCCUPANCY

-.2%
vs. Q3

+1%
vs. 5-yr avg.

+1%
vs. 15-yr avg.

(DEC) HOTEL OCCUPANCY

-16%
vs. Nov 2023

-15%
vs. Dec 2022

-15%
vs. 5-yr avg.

OFFICE SPACE RENTAL RATES

$22.28
 per square foot

in Q4 2023 vs. $22.12 in Q3 2023

VISITOR ACTIVITY COUNTS

-6%
vs. Dec 2023

-8%
vs. Jan 2023

EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COUNTS

+7%
vs. Dec 2023

-8%
vs. Jan 2023

RESIDENT ACTIVITY COUNTS

+16%
vs. Dec 2023

+26%
vs. Jan 2023

(DEC) DASH WORK RIDES (DEC) DASH CIRCULATOR RIDES

+8%
vs. Nov 2023

(OCT) CITY EMPLOYMENT

+2%
vs. Sep 2023

+6%
vs. Oct 2022

+6%
vs. 5-yr avg.

2

-34%
vs. Nov 2023



* received DDA Retail Innovation Grant

Food & Beverage
Retail
Food & Bev
Services
Opening Soon

New Businesses

 Source: Downtown Grand Rapids Inc.

Retail
Shinola Detroit*

3

Services
D’Vine Nails & Spa

Business Mix of Storefronts
Overall: Outer Ring

New in 2024: Inner Ring

Business Ownership of Storefronts
Overall: Outer Rings

New in 2024: Inner Rings

BIPOC Ownership
Women Ownership

Food & Bev
Retail

Services

Storefront Business Openings   |   Updated January 2024



*Monroe Center is a subset of Center City and is not included in District Totals
†truncated y-axis to highlight month-over-month changes

†

Storefronts Vacancies Vacancy % Sq Ft Available

Bridge Street 22 3 14% 6,335 sq ft

Center City 119 20 18% 91,240 sq ft

Monroe Center* 52* 8* 15%* 55,388 sq ft*

Fulton & Jefferson 21 0 0% 0 sq ft 

Heartside: Division 99 33 34% ~89,597 sq ft

Heartside: Ionia 70 12 14% 54,812 sq ft

Heartside: C. Chavez 13 3 29% 12,087 sq ft

Monroe North 28 2 4% 3,280 sq ft

Other 5 2 40% 4,460 sq ft

378 76 20%DISTRICT TOTALS: ~261,811 sq ft

4
 Source: Downtown Grand Rapids Inc.

3
storefront

businesses have 
closed in 2024

20%
vacancy rate

2024 Closures:
67% Food & Bev

33% Retail
0% Services

Vacant Storefront

Vacancy Locations

Storefront Vacancies & Recent Closures    |   Updated Jan 2024



$22.28
per sq ft in Q4 2023
vs. $22.12 in Q3 2023

8.3%
vacancy in Q4 2023
vs. 9.5% in Q3 2023

5

 Source: CoStar

Office Space   |   Updated Q4 2023

10.4M
square feet of office 

space inventory



*truncated y-axis to highlight changes

*

*

$1,466
asking rent rate

in Q4 2023

248
units under

construction

95%
occupancy
in Q4 2023

6

 Source: CoStar &
Downtown Grand Rapids Inc.

Housing Overview   |   Updated Q4 2023

1,033
units in planning



 Source: Smith Travel Research via CoStar

42%
hotel occupancy in

December 2023

57%
average hotel

occupancy in 2023

7

Hotel Occupancy   |   Updated December 2023



*

6%
decrease in 

Jan 2024 vs. Dec 2023

8%
decrease in Jan 2024

vs. 2023 average

5%
increase in Jan 2024
vs. Jan 5-year average

8%
decrease in 

Jan 2024 vs. Jan 2023

 Source: Placer.ai*truncated y-axis to highlight changes

8

Downtown Visitor Activity Tracking   |   Updated January 2024

*



*

7%
increase in 

Jan 2024 vs. Dec 2023

2%
increase in Jan 2024

vs. 2023 average

7%
increase in Jan 2024
vs. Jan 5-year average

8%
decrease in

Jan 2024 vs. Jan 2023

 Source: Placer.ai*truncated y-axis to highlight changes

9

Downtown Employee Activity Tracking   |   Updated January 2024

*



*

16%
increase in 

Jan 2024 vs. Dec 2023

15%
increase in Jan 2024

vs. 2023 average

38%
increase in Jan 2024
vs. Jan 5-year average

26%
increase in

Jan 2024 vs. Jan 2023

 Source: Placer.ai

10

Downtown Resident Activity Tracking   |   Updated January 2024



1 Corewell Health Ambulatory Building
    anticipated completion: Spring 2024

    +240,000 square feet of office space
    $20,000,000 investment

2 Center for Transformation & Innovation
    anticipated completion: Summer 2024

    +303,000 square feet of office space
    +1,200 jobs
    +1,090 parking spaces 
    $110,000,000 investment

3 Studio Park Residential Tower
    anticipated completion: End 2024

    +190 housing units
    $52,000,000 investment

4 Wealthy & Sheldon Lofts
    anticipated completion: End 2024

    +58 housing units
    +2,400 square feet of commercial space
    +30 parking spaces
    $17,500,000 investment

5 Corewell Health Parking Structure

6 Lyon Square Reconstruction
    anticipated completion: Fall 2024

    $12,000,000 investment

7 GRPM River’s Edge Work
    anticipated completion: 2025

    $12,000,000 investment

3

11
 Source: Downtown Grand Rapids Inc.

4

248
housing units

543k
square feet of 
office space

2,400
square feet of 

commercial space

Current Construction & Development   |   Updated January 2024

6
7

1,120
parking spaces

1,200
new jobs

$224M
in investment

2

1

5



*incomplete year & month

*

**

7%
decrease in average

ridership Jan - Apr 2023 
vs. 7-year average

34%
increase in ridership 
in Jan - Apr 2023 vs. 

Jan - Apr 2022

12

 Source: The Rapid

DASH 2.0 Ridership   |   Retired May 2023

*



* May service started on 5/10/23
†Service to Canal Park & North Monroe stops was disrupted due to Ottawa & Coldbrook construction
˚Division Avenue & Wealthy Street stops were added (8/30/23)
N.B.: No service on Thanksgiving Day (11/23/23)
Number of operating days: May: 16; Jun: 22; Jul: 22; Aug: 22; Sep: 22; Oct 21; Nov: 21; Dec: 23

*

*

DASH Circulator operates Wednesday - Sunday on one route with two directions (Clockwise and Counterclockwise).

Counts 
include bus 
operators

DASH 3.0: Circulator Ridership   |   Updated December 2023

 Source: The Rapid

13



* May service started on 5/10/23
N.B.: No service on Memorial Day (5/29/23), July 4th (7/4/23), Thanksgiving Day (11/23/23), Christmas Day (12/24/23)
Number of ride days: May: 17; Jun: 22; Jul: 20; Aug: 23; Sep: 20; Oct: 22; Nov: 21; Dec: 20

DASH WORK operates Monday - Friday, 6:30 AM - 9:30 AM & 3:30 PM - 6:30 PM, primarily servicing Downtown employees that park in Area 7 & 9.
DASH 3.0: WORK Ridership   |   Updated December 2023

 Source: The Rapid

14

AM Rides
PM Rides

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December



*truncated y-axis to highlight month-over-month changes

*

2%
increase

in Oct 2023
vs. Sep 2023

2%
increase

in Oct 2023 vs. 
2023 average so far

6%
increase

in Oct 2023
vs. 5-year average

6%
increase

in Oct 2023
vs. Oct 2022

15

 Source: BLS

Grand Rapids City Employment   |   Updated October 2023


	01 MNTIFA Agenda 2023
	02 MNTIFA DRAFT June 14 2023 Unapproved Minutes
	03 MN Memo & Statements - FY24 07 Jan
	04a MNTIFA Audit - SCANNED doc

